
 
 
 
 
 
 Date: 17 January 2007  
 
 
TO: 
 
 
 
TO: 

All Members of the Development 
Control Committee 
FOR ATTENDANCE 
 
All Other Members of the Council 
FOR INFORMATION 

  

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the DEVELOPMENT 
CONTROL COMMITTEE to be held in the GUILDHALL, ABINGDON 
on MONDAY, 29TH JANUARY, 2007 at 6.30 PM. 
 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
Terry Stock 
Chief Executive  
 
 

Members are reminded of the provisions contained in Part 2 of the Local Code of Conduct, and 
Standing Order 34 regarding the declaration of Personal and Prejudicial Interests. 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
Open to the Public including the Press 
 

A large print version of this agenda is available.  In addition 
any background papers referred to may be inspected by prior 
arrangement. Contact Carole Nicholl, Democratic Services 
Officer, on telephone number (01235) 547631. 
  
Map and Vision   
 

(Page 5) 
 

A map showing the location of the venue for this meeting and a copy of the Council’s Vision are 
attached. 
 
1. Notification of Substitutes and Apologies for Absence  
 

     

 To record the attendance of Substitute Members, if any, who have been authorised to attend in 
accordance with the provisions of Standing Order 17(1), with notification having been given to 
the proper Officer before the start of the meeting and to receive apologies for absence. 

 



Development Control Committee  Monday, 29th January, 2007 
 

 
2. Minutes  
 

 (Pages 6 - 16)    

 To adopt and sign as a correct record the Minutes of the Meeting of the Development Control 
Committee held on 27 November 2006 (attached). 
 

3. Declarations of Interest  
 

     

 To receive any declarations of Personal or Personal and Prejudicial Interests in respect of items 
on the agenda for this meeting.   
 
In accordance with Part 2 of the Local Code of Conduct and the provisions of Standing Order 
34, any Member with a personal interest must disclose the existence and nature of that interest 
to the meeting prior to the matter being debated.  Where that personal interest is also a 
prejudicial interest, then the Member must withdraw from the room in which the meeting is 
being held and not seek improperly to influence any decision about the matter unless he/she 
has obtained a dispensation from the Standards Committee. 
 

4. Urgent Business and Chair's Announcements  
 

     

 To receive notification of any matters, which the Chair determines, should be considered as 
urgent business and the special circumstances, which have made the matters urgent, and to 
receive any announcements from the Chair. 
 

5. Statements and Petitions from the Public Under Standing Order 32  
 

     

 Any statements and/or petitions from the public under Standing Order 32 will be made or 
presented at the meeting. 
 

6. Questions from the Public Under Standing Order 32  
 

     

 Any questions from members of the public under Standing Order 32 will be asked at the 
meeting. 
 

7. Statements and Petitions from the Public under Standing Order 33  
 

     

 Any statements and/or petitions from members of the public under Standing Order 33, relating 
to planning applications, will be made or presented at the meeting. 
 

8. Materials  
 

     

 To consider any materials submitted prior to the meeting of the Committee. 
 
ANY MATERIALS SUBMITTED WILL BE ON DISPLAY PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 
 

9. Forthcoming Public Inquiries and Hearings  
 

 (Pages 17 - 22)    

 A list of forthcoming public inquiries and hearings is presented. 
 
Recommendation 



Development Control Committee  Monday, 29th January, 2007 
 

 
that the report be received. 
 
 

  
PLANNING APPLICATIONS   
 

 
 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1995 - The background papers for the applications on 
this agenda are available for inspection at the Council Offices at the Abbey House in Abingdon during 
normal office hours.  They include the Oxfordshire Structure Plan, the Adopted Vale of White Horse 
Local Plan (November 1999) and the emerging Local Plan and all representations received as a result 
of consultation. 
 
Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be reported at the 
meeting.   
 
Please note that the order in which applications are considered may alter to take account of the 
Council’s public speaking arrangements.  Applications where members of the public have given notice 
that they wish to speak will be considered first. 
 
Report 153/06 of the Deputy Director refers. 
 
 
10. ECH/235/43 - Erection of two industrial units for B1, B2 and B8 uses, Land adjoining Unit 

2, W & G Estate, East Challow  
 

(Wards Affected: Greendown)  
 

(Pages 23 - 31)  
 

11. GRO/4788/3 - Single and two storey rear extensions, 9 Vale Avenue, Grove, OX12 7LU  
 

(Wards Affected: Grove)  
 

(Pages 32 - 37)  
 

12. CUM/8320/1 - Demolition of house and garage.  Erection of replacement building 
comprising flats.  Erection houses and coach house, off-street parking and landscaping, 
40 Cumnor Hill, OX2 9HB  

 

(Wards Affected: Appleton and Cumnor)  
 

(Pages 38 - 43)  
 

13. GRO/11225/2 - Demolition of existing garden room.  Erection of a two storey rear 
extension & new conservatory, 7 Mandhill Close, Grove, OX12 7HY  

 

(Wards Affected: Grove)  
 

(Pages 44 - 53)  
 

14. STE/12024/4 - Erection of a Dwelling and Part Demolition of Wall and STE/12024/4-CA - 
Part Demolition of Wall, Land at The Gables, 39 The Green, Steventon, OX13 6RR  

 

(Wards Affected: Hendreds)  
 

(Pages 54 - 59)  
 
 



Development Control Committee  Monday, 29th January, 2007 
 

15. ABG/19785/1 - Demolition of porch, utility room and garage.  Erection of extensions and 
conversion of dwelling to create apartments (resubmission of ABG/19785), 15 
Springfield Drive, Abingdon, OX14 1JG  

 

(Wards Affected: Abingdon Fitzharris)  
 

(Pages 60 - 71)  
 

16. NHI/19842 - Erection of a side and rear extension, 6 Montagu Road, Botley, OX2 9AH  
 

(Wards Affected: North Hinksey and Wytham)  
 

(Pages 72 - 74)  
 

17. HIN/19850 and HIN/19850/1- Erection of single and two storey rear extension and carport, 
Little Thatch, Church Road, Hinton Waldrist, SN7 8SE  

 

(Wards Affected: Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor)  
 

(Pages 75 - 80)  
 

18. ABG/19871 - Erection of a rear conservatory and new window to rear, 9 River View 
Terrace, Coopers Lane, Abingdon, OX14 5GL  

 

(Wards Affected: Abingdon Ock Meadow)  
 

(Pages 81 - 86)  
 

  
Exempt Information under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972   
 

 
 

None. 



Agenda Annex

Page 5



 

DC.102 
 

 

 

MINUTES OF A MEETING 
OF THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
COMMITTEE 

HELD AT THE GUILDHALL, ABINGDON ON 
MONDAY, 27TH NOVEMBER, 2006 AT 

6.30PM 
 

Open to the Public, including the Press 
 

PRESENT:  
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Terry Quinlan (Chair), John Woodford (Vice-Chair), Terry Cox, 
Tony de Vere, Richard Gibson, Jenny Hannaby, Monica Lovatt, Jim Moley, Briony Newport, 
Jerry Patterson, Peter Saunders, Margaret Turner and Pam Westwood. 
 
SUBSTITUTE MEMBER: Councillor Terry Fraser for Councillor Richard Farrell. 
 
OFFICERS: Sarah Commins, Martin Deans, Rodger Hood, Laura Hudson, Geraldine Le Cointe, 
Carole Nicholl and George Reade. 
 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC:  12 

 

 
 

DC.177 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
The attendance of a Substitute Member who had been authorised to attend in accordance 
with the provisions of Standing Order 17(1) was recorded as referred to above with an apology 
for absence having been received from Councillor Richard Farrell.  An apology for absence 
was also recorded from Councillor Roger Cox. 
 

DC.178 MINUTES  
 
The Minutes of the Meeting of the Development Control Committee held on 16 October 2006 
were adopted and signed as a correct record subject to the deletion of the word “eternal” in 
the third paragraph of minute DC.159 and the substitution thereof with the word “external”. 
 

DC.179 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members declared interests as follows: - 
 
Councillor  Type of 

Interest 
Item Reason Minutes 

Ref 
Monica Lovatt Personal 

and 
Prejudicial 

Dismissed Appeal 
decision in respect 
of ABG/10612/16 

She was acquainted with the 
appellant. 

DC.185 

Terry Cox Personal  Dismissed Appeal 
decision in respect 
of ABG/10612/16 

He was acquainted with the 
appellant in so far as he was 
formerly the Bursar of 
Templeton College. 

DC.185 

Jerry 
Patterson 

Personal  Dismissed Appeal 
decision in respect 
of ABG/10612/16 

He was acquainted with the 
appellant in so far as he was 
formerly the Bursar of 
Templeton College. 

DC.185 

All Members  Personal Proposed works to 
trees at Hall Barn 
Close 

They were acquainted with 
Councillor Farrell the 
applicant’s husband. 

DC.189 

Agenda Item 2

Page 6



Development Control 
Committee DC.103 

Monday, 27th November, 2006 

 

 

All Members Personal NHI/19799 
 

In so far as the Council was 
the applicant. 

DC.196 

Jenny 
Hannaby 

Personal WAN/19791 She had been present at the 
meeting of the Town Council's 
Planning Committee when this 
application had been 
considered.  However, she had 
taken no part in the discussion 
or voting thereon. 

DC.200 

 
DC.180 URGENT BUSINESS AND CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
The Chair announced that all mobile telephones should be switched off during the meeting. 
 
The Chair reported that a letter from Thames Valley Police had been sent to all Members 
entitled “Planning out Crime”. 
 

DC.181 STATEMENTS AND PETITIONS FROM THE PUBLIC UNDER STANDING ORDER 32  
 
None. 
 

DC.182 QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC UNDER STANDING ORDER 32  
 
None. 
 

DC.183 STATEMENTS AND PETITIONS FROM THE PUBLIC UNDER STANDING ORDER 33  
 
It was noted that 6 members of the public had each given notice that they wished to make a 
statement.   
 

DC.184 MATERIALS  
 
None. 
 

DC.185 APPEALS  
 
Councillor Monica Lovatt had declared a Personal and Prejudicial Interest in this item and in 
accordance with Standing Order 34 she withdrew from the meeting during its consideration. 
 
Councillors Terry Cox and Jerry Patterson had each declared a Personal Interest in this item 
and in accordance with Standing Order 34 they remained in the meeting during its 
consideration. 
 
The Committee received and considered an agenda item which advised of three appeals 
which had been dismissed by the Planning Inspectorate. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that the agenda report be received. 
 

DC.186 FORTHCOMING PUBLIC INQUIRIES AND HEARINGS  
 
The Committee received and considered a list of forthcoming Public Inquiries and Hearings. 
 
RESOLVED 

Page 7



Development Control 
Committee DC.104 

Monday, 27th November, 2006 

 

 

 
that the list be received. 
 

DC.187 TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (WANTAGE) NO. 6 2006  
 
The Committee received and considered report 112/06 of the Landscape Officer 
(Arboriculture) which advised that in August 2005, the Council had received a planning 
application from the Vale Housing Association to develop the garage area of Barwell and part 
of the garden of 53 Barwell, Wantage.  It was reported that the development would have 
meant the loss of a large weeping willow that stood in the rear garden of no. 53. Following 
discussions with the Council’s Planning Officers and the Vale Housing Association the 
application was withdrawn.   
 
The Committee noted that in April 2006, the same application for development was made by 
the Vale Housing Association. The Council had been unable to come to an agreement with the 
developers about repositioning the buildings to allow the willow to stay.  Consequently a Tree 
Preservation Order was issued in June 2006 to protect the willow.  A plan showing the location 
of the tree was appended to the report. 
 
An objection was received to the Order from the Vale Housing Association details of which 
were outlined in the report and reiterated at the meeting. 
 
One of the local Members commented on the importance of the tree in this area but also 
recognised the need for affordable housing. 
 
Another Member spoke in support of confirming the Order commenting on the significance of 
the tree and the contribution it made to the lives and enjoyment of the residents in the area.  
He noted that the land was in the ownership of the applicant and he disagreed that the 
scheme would be unviable if the tree was retained.  Finally, he welcomed affordable housing 
but not to the detriment of the area through the loss of this significant tree. 
 
Another Member spoke against confirming the Order commenting that the provision of 
affordable housing took precedence over the retention of trees.  
 
Other Members spoke in support of confirming the Order commenting on the significance of 
the tree, its contribution to the local area and the need for its protection noting that it had a 
likely life span of a further 30 to 40 years.  It was commented that there was no justification not 
to confirm the Order. 
 
By 13 votes to nil, with 1 abstention, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that Tree Preservation Order (Wantage) No.6 be confirmed. 
 

DC.188 ENFORCEMENT PROGRAMME  
 
The Committee received and considered report 111/06 of the Deputy Director (Planning and 
Community Strategy) which sought approval to take enforcement action in respect of the alleged 
conversion of a garage into a classroom at Cothill Kindergarten, 68 Marcham Road, Cothill, 
Abingdon. 
 
The Committee was advised that a planning application had now been lodged but there was 
insufficient information for it to be processed.   
 

Page 8



Development Control 
Committee DC.105 

Monday, 27th November, 2006 

 

 

Further to the report, the Committee was advised that a letter had been received from one of 
the neighbours supporting enforcement action in this case. 
 
Members spoke in support of taking enforcement action thanking the Officers for bringing the 
report to the Committee in a timely way.  It was commented that without a planning application 
it was difficult for Members to consider a different use. It was emphasised that it was essential 
that enforcement action should be taken where planning permission did not exist.  However, it 
might be that the change of use would be allowed in this case, notably if it did not result in an 
increase in the number of children that the nursery cared for.  
 
One Member commented that the Enforcement Officers had been reasonable and that efforts 
to obtain the information had been continuous.  It was explained that enforcement action might 
not be necessary in this case if the additional information sought was forthcoming.   
 
By 13 votes to nil, with 1 abstention it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that authority be delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Chair and/or Vice Chair 
of the Development Control Committee to take enforcement action in respect of the alleged 
conversion of a garage into a classroom at Cothill Kindergarten, 86 Marcham Road, Cothill, 
Abingdon, if he considers it expedient to do so. 
 

DC.189 PROPOSED WORKS TO TREES IN THE CONSERVATION AREA AT HALL BARN CLOSE, 
CHAPEL LANE, BLEWBURY  
 
All Members of the Committee had declared a Personal Interest in this item and in accordance 
with Standing Order 34 they remained in the meeting during its consideration. 
 
The Committee received and considered an agenda item which advised that notification had 
been received under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 for works to trees at Hill Barn 
Close, Chapel Lane, Blewbury. 
 
This notification was reported to the Committee as the person giving notice was married to an 
elected Member of the Council. 
 
The Committee noted that the conifer was small and there would no loss to the village if the 
cedar was felled. 
 
By 14 votes to nil it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that the agenda report be received and no further action be taken. 
 
PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 
The Committee received and considered report 113/06 detailing planning applications the 
decisions of which are set out below. 
 
Applications where Members of the public had given notice that they wished to speak were 
considered first. 
 
 

Page 9



Development Control 
Committee DC.106 

Monday, 27th November, 2006 

 

 

DC.190 ABG/19058/2 – RETROSPECTIVE APPLICATION FOR A SUMMERHOUSE/GAMES ROOM 
AND RAISING GROUND LEVEL. (RE-SUBMISSION). 5 NORMAN AVE, ABINGDON  
 
One of the local Members thanked the Officers for arranging an organised visit to the site 
which she had found beneficial.  She expressed support for the proposal commenting that the 
summer house faced the applicant’s house and was screened by high hedging.  However, she 
commented that the building was close to the neighbouring property, the occupier of which 
had expressed concern regarding a potential for noise disturbance. 
 
Another Member agreed commenting that any measures to mitigate noise should be required. 
 
One Member commented that the building was unattractive building, although noted that this 
was not a reason to refuse permission.  She expressed concern that the property could be 
used for residential purposes and that a condition to prevent noise disturbance should be 
added. 
 
Other Members spoke in support of the proposal considering that there would be no harm but 
agreeing that a condition to prevent a noise nuisance was appropriate, together with a 
condition regarding the colour of the building. 
 
Members discussed potential activities which might take place in the property such as playing 
drums.  It was noted that this could be acceptable provided a noise nuisance did not result.  If 
a noise nuisance did occur this would be dealt with under Environmental Health legislation.  
To this end it was considered that a condition restricting amplified music would be reasonable.   
 
By 14 votes to nil it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 

that application ABG/19058/2 be approved subject to: - 
 
(1) the conditions set out in the report; 
 
(2) a further condition requiring the building to be maintained a specific colour; such colour 

to be agreed by the Planning Officer;  
 
(3) a further condition to restrict the playing of amplified music; and 
 
(4) an Informative setting out this Committee’s concern regarding potential noise 

disturbance and drawing attention to the relevant Environmental Health legislation in 
this regard. 

 
DC.191 DRA/19517/2 – ERECTION OF A FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION.  39 ABINGDON ROAD, 

DRAYTON  
 
By 14 votes to nil it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that application DRA/19517/2 be approved subject to the conditions set out in the report. 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



Development Control 
Committee DC.107 

Monday, 27th November, 2006 

 

 

DC.192 DRA/6267/1 – MR M SELBY ERECTION OF A REAR EXTENSION TO FORM A LOUNGE 
AND BEDROOM.  INTERNAL CHANGES AND RE-ROOFING. 37 ABINGDON ROAD, 
DRAYTON  
 
By 14 votes to nil it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that application DRA/6267/1 be approved subject to the conditions set out in the report. 
 

DC.193 GFA/19744 – SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION AND CONVERSION OF INTEGRAL GARAGE 
INTO BEDROOM. 30 TOWN END ROAD, FARINGDON  
 
On Member asked that the Officers be requested to check that the parking was being 
provided. 
 
By 14 votes to nil, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that application GFA/19744 be approved subject to the conditions set out in the report. 
 

DC.194 GRO/10877/1 – MR PAUL LONGWORTH DEMOLITION OF EXISTING GARAGE.  BUILD 
NEW GARAGE WITH UTILITY ROOM AND SHOWER ROOM ATTACHED. 2 LAUREL 
CRESCENT, GROVE  
 
Further to the report, the Committee was advised that additional comments had been received 
from the County Engineer asking that the garage be retained as a garage; a parking plan be 
sought and a pedestrian access vision splay be provided.  However, the Officers reported that 
they did not consider that this was reasonable. 
 
By 14 votes to nil it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that application GRO/10877/1 be approved subject to the conditions set out in the report. 
 

DC.195 NHI/19742 – DEMOLITION OF EXISTING HOUSE AND CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW 
BUILDING CONTAINING 9 FLATS. 29 WEST WAY, BOTLEY  
 
Further to the report the Committee was advised that car parking was a main issue to consider 
as part of this application.  However, the Officers explained that there were car free flats 
elsewhere in Oxford and that the site was contained within an area of on-street parking 
control.  The Committee was asked to consider how likely it was that residents of the 
proposed flats would have a vehicle.  It was commented that the Botley shopping centre was 
nearby and that there were cycle and bus routes immediately in front of the site.  Therefore, 
the Officers had concluded that it was likely that the residents of the flats would not 
necessarily need to have a vehicle.  However, should they have a vehicle the Committee was 
asked to consider what harm would be caused. 
 
The Officers explained that they had made several visits to the site at different times of day to 
assess the parking situation. It was reported that there was parking in the area during the day 
but not the evening, which suggested that the area was not used for residents parking.  Where 
there were no parking restrictions there was on-street parking.  Therefore, the Officers had 
concluded that it was difficult to argue that cars from this scheme would cause on-street 

Page 11



Development Control 
Committee DC.108 

Monday, 27th November, 2006 

 

 

parking.  It was commented that the site was in a sustainable area and that the application 
could not be refused on highway grounds. 
 
Mr P Stevens made a statement on behalf of North Hinksey Parish Council raising concerns 
relating to matters already covered in the report.  He particularly raised concerns regarding the 
level and continuity of traffic; parking restrictions and the lack of parking provision.  He 
suggested that the proposal was contrary to Planning Policy Guidance in view of the lack of 
parking proposed.  He suggested that the development would require several parking spaces 
and that no spaces was unreasonable and contrary to the Guidance and he suggested that 
there was a need for better supporting information where there was a lower amount.  He 
suggested that the application should be refused which was the view of the Parish Council. 
 
Mr P Uzzell the applicant’s agent made a statement in support of the application advising that 
the key matter was that the site was in an appropriate location for a car free scheme and that 
it would be difficult to find another more sustainable location.  He explained that in terms of 
PPG3 and PPG13, the absence of any parking provision was aimed at reducing the need for 
parking.  He highlighted that the County Engineer had raised no objection and that there were 
car free scheme in similar locations in Oxford city. Notwithstanding the merits of the 
application in terms of the acceptability of not requiring parking provision, he advised that 
there was some spare capacity for parking in the evenings in the vicinity and consequently 
residents would not be compromised. He explained that there would be no overlooking, loss of 
privacy and all the windows were positioned forward of the office building.  He reported that 
high density developments were encouraged and that the surface water would not drain into a 
public sewer. 
 
One of the local Members expressed her concern at the proposal referring to the level of traffic 
and parking.  She explained that she knew the area very well and that the promotion of a car 
free scheme was not appropriate in this location.  She raised concerns regarding flooding; the 
setting of a precedent; displaced parking; parking problems generally and the possibility of 
other similar applications in Botley. She disagreed that this was a sustainable location and 
disagreed that a car free scheme would be possible. 
 
Another local Member noted that the Officers had consulted with Thames Water and 
commented that there was a need for an upgrading of the drainage system in this area.  He 
commented that he had some concerns but welcomed the principle of a car free development.  
He commented that whilst he agreed that the occupiers of the flats might not have cars any 
visitors might.  However, he could not object to the proposal in planning terms. 
 
Some Members spoke against the application making the following comments: - 
- There was insufficient evidence that this scheme would be appropriate. 
- Notwithstanding that this was intended as a car free development the reality of any 

occupiers not owing a vehicle was remote. 
- It was not possible to enforce that the residents should not have a vehicle. 
- There was insufficient parking in the locality. 
- Approval of the scheme would set a precedent for similar applications in the area. 
- Large family homes were being lost in Botley. 
- This proposal was different to a car free scheme in Abingdon where there was a public 

car park near by and residents were able to purchase parking permits for that car park. 
- Vehicle access to the development was restricted. 
- Even taking a view that only one space was needed for each flat, 7 or 8 spaces would 

realistically be needed.  There were flats in Wantage where the occupiers had more 
than one vehicle.   

-  There was no public car parking nearby where the occupiers could purchase a season 
ticket or use another parking facility. 

 

Page 12



Development Control 
Committee DC.109 

Monday, 27th November, 2006 

 

 

Some Members spoke in support of the application making the following comments: - 
 
- There were many residents in the Vale who did not have a vehicle and that this 

scheme was achievable. 
- The County Engineer had raised no objection to the proposal and therefore should the 

Committee be minded to refuse the application a view from an independent highway 
expert supporting refusal should be sought. 

- This was a unique site in that the primary roads around it were restricted, which was 
not a situation which was likely to be repeated elsewhere and therefore the possibility 
of setting a precedent was remote.  Furthermore, every application needed to be 
considered on its merits. 

- It was possible to obtain a season ticket for the car park in Westway.  Only people who 
would buy these properties would be car free. 

 
It was proposed by Councillor Terry Cox and seconded by Councillor Briony Newport that a 
view be sought from an independent highway consultant regarding the car parking 
requirement associated with this development.  However, on being put, by 8 votes to 7 with 
the Chair exercising his second and casting vote the proposal was lost. 
 
By 8 votes to 7 with the Chair exercising his second and casting vote and Councillors Terry 
Cox, Monica Lovatt, Briony Newport, Peter Saunders, Margaret Turner and Pam Westwood 
voting against and having asked that this be so recorded in the Minutes, it was 
 
RESOLVED  
 
that application NHI/19742 be approved subject to the conditions set out in the report. 
 

DC.196 NHI/19799 – CHANGE OF USE FROM ACCOMMODATION TO OFFICE AND STORAGE 9A 
THE SQUARE, WEST WAY, BOTLEY  
 
All Members had declared a personal interest in this item and in accordance with Standing 
Order 34 they remained in the meeting during its consideration. 
 
Mrs A Green made a statement in support of the application commenting that she believed 
that Botley was a developing area and that the change of use would be an improvement on 
the existing use.  She reported that the change would result in the availability of a disabled 
toilet which was currently used for storage.  She explained that previously the flat had been 
occupied by tenants which had been difficult to manage and the flat had been neglected. She 
considered that the change of use would not significantly impact on the availability of 
residential accommodation and would be beneficial to her business.  She referred to a similar 
situation where a flat had been converted into offices.  Finally, she commented that the 
proposal would not result in the need for additional parking. 
 
One of the local Members raised no objection to the proposal. 
 
In response to a question raised, the Officers explained that planning permission was not 
necessary for a flat above a shop and therefore should the current lease holder surrender the 
lease, the premises could revert back to residential accommodation.  However any other 
change of use would require planning permission. 
 
By 14 votes to nil it was  
 
RESOLVED 
 
that application NHI/19799 be approved subject to the condition set out in the report. 

Page 13



Development Control 
Committee DC.110 

Monday, 27th November, 2006 

 

 

 
DC.197 SAH/5911/4 – CHANGE OF USE FROM OUTBUILDING TO HAIR SALON.  

(RETROSPECTIVE) 33 SANDLEIGH ROAD, DRY SANDFORD  
 
Mr S Grigson made a statement on behalf of the Parish Council objecting to the application 
raising concerns relating to matters already covered in the report.  He commented that 
advances in technology had enabled people to work from home but that this type of home 
working was different. He commented that the proposed use was more akin to a retail shop 
use.  He advised that there were no restrictions regarding employees.  He reported that the 
road frontage was very open and gardens had low walls. As such the proposal would 
adversely impact on the amenity of neighbours in terms of the disturbance caused by visitors 
and parking. He commented that the circumstances of this application were different to those 
of a similar application at No. 63 Oxford Road, where the site was set back from the road and 
was well screened.  He suggested that one intention of working from home was to minimise 
travel.  He considered that this proposal would result in increased traffic to the area as clients 
would visit the property and that this traffic generation was contrary to the objectives of the 
policy on home working. 
 
Mr Talbot also made a statement objecting to the application commenting that the area was 
residential and that approval of the proposal would set a precedent for similar applications in 
the area.  He referred to the number of clients which would visit the property expressing 
concern regarding loss of privacy; increased traffic; parking; damage to verges and 
pavements and loss of outlook.  He explained that he would be able to view the commercial 
premises from his garden and he expressed concern regarding the number of staff which 
could be employed.  He commented that there was already a hair dresser and shops nearby 
which served the local community and that there was no need for the proposal.  He 
commented that the proposal would change the character of the area causing harm to the 
amenity of neighbours.  Finally, he questioned whether approval would be personal to the 
applicant should the Committee be minded to approve the application. 
 
Mr Homewood made a statement on behalf of the applicant referring to the improvements 
made to the property.  He reported that the outbuilding had been installed by the previous 
owner. He explained that it was unobtrusive and that there would be no noise, smell or other 
disturbance from its proposed use and that there would be no loss of amenity.  He advised 
that there was 6ft high fencing along one boundary and the applicant was willing to provide 
similar fencing along the other boundary.  He reported that there was sufficient parking on site 
for customers and that there was excellent visibility when entering and leaving the driveway.  
He reported that there would be no deliveries and that there were numerous types of 
businesses run from home and he gave several examples of others locally. He commented 
that in comparison to the examples given, the proposed use would not be a nuisance and 
there would be no adverse impact. Finally, he reported that the business would not be widely 
marketed.   
 
One Member referred to the expected level of customers commenting that based on this 
assumption the intended use would not be unreasonable.  However, he considered that if 
there were to be more customers visiting the site a level of use might be reached which would 
be unreasonable.  The Officers responded that conditions were proposed to prevent a further 
intensification of the use.  The hours of use were specified and the planning permission is 
approved was to be personal to the applicant although this did not prohibit the applicant 
employing someone to help with the business. 
  
One Member commented that there were many self employed hairdressers working from 
home, which was acceptable if that work was subsidiary to the use of a domestic dwelling.  
However, he was concerned that this proposal might set a precedent. He noted the 

Page 14



Development Control 
Committee DC.111 

Monday, 27th November, 2006 

 

 

commented of one of the speakers regarding the willingness to erect a fence along the 
opposite boundary and considered that this should be welcomed. 
 
By 14 votes to nil it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that the Chief Executive in consultation with the Chair and/or Vice-Chair of the Development 
Control Committee and the local Members be delegated authority to approve application 
SAH/5911/4 subject to : - 
 
(1) the conditions set out in the report; and 
 
(2) further conditions to require the erection of a fence along the boundary and the 

restriction of use by limiting the number of employees. 
 

DC.198 SHE/19644 – ERECTION OF GARAGES, CONSTRUCTION OF NEW HIGHWAY ACCESS 
AND ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING WORKS. 2 & 3 FARM COTTAGES, FERNHAM ROAD, 
SHELLINGFORD  
 
Colin Broadley made a statement on behalf of the Parish Meeting and as a neighbour 
objecting to the application raising concerns regarding safety in terms of increased traffic, 
traffic speeds and pedestrian safety.  He advised that he had previously been approached 
regarding the sale of part of his garden with a view to the development of two new properties.  
He expressed concern regarding the reason for this application and the future development 
intentions.  He expressed concern regarding increased traffic along the track and commented 
that sufficient space for two garages would exist. He reiterated concerns regarding safety 
commenting that a traffic accident was inevitable.  He referred to the comments of the County 
Engineer and suggested that there should be a restriction on the number of vehicles which 
could use the access.  Finally, he asked the Committee to consider the original plans 
commenting that the access proposal contained in those would be safer. 
 
In response to the speaker’s comments, the Officers reminded the Committee that each 
application had to be judged on its merits and that assumptions should not be made regarding 
future development proposals. 
 
One Member spoke in support of the application but considered that an additional condition 
should be added to require a mechanism to prevent parking to the rear of cottages 2 and 3 
(such as a close boarded fence) and closure of the vehicular access to the rear of the 
cottages. 
 
Another Member commented that whilst he had sympathy with the views of the objector there 
were no material planning reasons to refuse permission.   
 
By 14 votes to nil, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that application SHE/19644 be approved subject to the conditions set out in the report and 
further conditions to require a mechanism to prevent parking to the rear of cottages 2 and 3 
and the closure of the vehicular access to the rear of the cottages. 
 
 
 

Page 15



Development Control 
Committee DC.112 

Monday, 27th November, 2006 

 

 

DC.199 SUT/19729/1 – ERECTION OF A DOUBLE GARAGE.48 MILTON ROAD, SUTTON 
COURTENAY  
 
Members noted that the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 16 October 2006 
when this application had been considered previously were set out elsewhere on the agenda. 
By 14 votes to nil, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that application SUT/19729/1 be approved subject to the conditions set out in the report. 
 

DC.200 WAN/19791 – ERECTION OF 2 CHICKEN SHEDS AND RETROSPECTIVE APPLICATION 
FOR WATER PUMP WITH CONCRETE BASE. LAND ADJACENT TO LETCOMBE 
FOOTPATH COTTAGE (LITTLE ACRE), WILLOW LANE, WANTAGE  
 
Councillor Jenny Hannaby had declared a personal interest in this item and in accordance 
with Standing Order 34 she remained in the meeting during its consideration. 
 
Further to the report the Committee was advised that an email had been received from the 
objector reiterating the concerns previously raised and expressing concerns regarding the 
fence around the site.  However, the Officers explained that planning permission was not 
required for the fence, but an informative could be added to any permission advising the 
applicant of the need for the fence to be sympathetic to its rural setting. 
 
One Member commented that the Town Council had raised concerns regarding pest control 
matters although it was noted that this was not a material planning consideration. 
 
By 14 votes to nil it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that application WAN/19791 be approved subject to the condition and informative set out in 
the report and a further informative to advise of the need for the fence to be sympathetic to its 
rural setting. 
 
Exempt Information Under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
None. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting rose at 9.30 pm 
 

Page 16



P
u
b
lic

 I
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
ri
n
g
s
 P

ri
n
te

d
 1

7
/0

1
/2

0
0
7
 

L
is

t 
o
f 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 A

p
p
e
a
ls

 
 

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

 
A

p
p
e
a
l 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 

A
p
p
e
lla

n
t 

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

H
e
a
ri
n
g

/ 
P

u
b
lic

 
In

q
u
ir
y
/W

ri
tt
e
n
 

R
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

A
re

a
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 &

 
D

a
te

 

2
9

.0
9

.0
5

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
5

//
1

1
8
7

9
2

2
 

N
H

I/
6

2
8

9
/3

 
 A

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 L
P

A
 

re
fu

s
a

l 
o

f 
a

n
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

   

M
r 

C
a

is
b

ro
o

k
 

H
ila

ri
o
n

, 
H

a
rc

o
u

rt
 

H
ill

, 
O

x
fo

rd
 

E
re

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 t
ri
p

le
 g

a
ra

g
e

. 

H
e

a
ri

n
g

 
 

D
a

te
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o

n
fi

rm
e

d
 

N
o

rt
h

 
A

ll
o

w
e

d
 

0
7

.0
9

.0
6

 

0
3

.1
1

.0
5

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
5

/1
1

9
2
8

7
6

 
G

F
A

/1
6

6
9

6
/2

 
 A

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 L
P

A
 

re
fu

s
a

l 
o

f 
a

n
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

W
ic

k
le

s
h

a
m

 
C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 L

td
 

W
ic

k
le

s
h

a
m

 L
o
d

g
e

 
F

a
rm

, 
F

a
ri

n
g

d
o
n

 
R

e
m

o
v
a

l 
o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 a

g
ri
c
u
lt
u

ra
l 

b
u

ild
in

g
/f

a
rm

 o
ff
ic

e
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n

 
o

f 
re

p
la

c
e

m
e
n

t 
b
u

ild
in

g
s
 f
o

r 
u
s
e

 
c
la

s
s
 B

1
(a

) 
o

ff
ic

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

. 
C

a
r 

p
a

rk
in

g
. 

 

  
H

e
a

ri
n

g
 

 
D

a
te

 t
o

 b
e
 

c
o

n
fi

rm
e

d
 

N
o

rt
h

 
A

p
p

e
a

l 
W

it
h

d
ra

w
n

 –
 

0
5

.0
9

.0
6

 

0
3

.0
3

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

0
8
0

2
4

/N
W

F
 

L
W

O
/1

3
6

8
2

/4
-X

 
A

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 L
P

A
 

re
fu

s
a

l 
o

f 
a

n
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

D
e

b
b

ie
 R

e
e

d
 

W
a
y
s
id

e
 H

o
u

s
e

, 
B

e
g

g
a

rs
 L

a
n

e
, 

L
o

n
g

w
o

rt
h

, 
A

b
in

g
d
o

n
, 

O
x
o

n
, 

O
X

1
3

 5
B

L
 

 

E
re

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 d
w

e
lli

n
g

 
H

e
a

ri
n

g
 

 
D

a
te

 t
o

 b
e
 

c
o

n
fi

rm
e

d
 

N
o

rt
h

 
A

p
p

e
a

l 
W

it
h

d
ra

w
n

 –
 

0
1

.0
9

.0
6

 

0
9

.0
3

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/C

/0
6

/ 
2

0
0

9
7
1

3
 

 

G
C

O
/1

8
2

7
5

/6
-E

 
M

r 
D

a
v
id

 
C

ro
s
s
le

y
-C

o
o

k
e

 
L

a
n

d
 s

o
u
th

 o
f 

C
o

x
w

e
ll 

H
o

u
s
e

 
C

o
x
w

e
ll 

R
o

a
d

 
G

re
a

t 
C

o
x
w

e
ll 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
a

g
a

in
s
t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

u
s
e

 o
f 

la
n

d
 f

ro
m

 a
g

ri
c
u

lt
u

re
 t
o

 
u

s
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

to
ra

g
e

 o
f 
n

o
n

-a
g

ri
c
. 

It
e

m
s
, 

m
a

te
ri
a

ls
 a

n
d

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
 

 
W

ri
tt

e
n

 
R

e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
s
 

N
o

rt
h

 
 

2
3

.0
5

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

1
5
4

6
8

 
S

A
H

/1
9

3
0

3
 

M
r 

A
n

d
e

rs
o

n
 

3
1

 R
o

o
k
e

ry
 C

lo
s
e

 
S

h
ip

p
o
n

 
A

b
in

g
d
o

n
 

O
x
o

n
 

O
X

1
3

 6
L

Z
 

 

E
re

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 t
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 s

id
e

 
e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
lt
e

ra
ti
o
n

s
. 

W
ri
tt

e
n
 

R
e

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
s
 

N
o

rt
h

 
D

is
m

is
s
e

d
 –

 
1

9
.0

9
.0

6
 

2
1

.0
6

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

2
1

2
0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

1
4

2
8

7
/W

F
 

K
E

N
/1

9
1

4
4
/1

 
M

r 
A

n
d

re
w

 
M

a
c
D

o
n

a
ld

 
1

0
6

 K
e
n

n
in

g
to

n
 

R
o

a
d

, 
K

e
n

n
in

g
to

n
, 

O
x
fo

rd
, 

O
X

1
 5

P
E

 
  

E
re

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 s
in

g
le

 s
to

re
y
 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 t
o

 f
ro

n
t.

 D
e
m

o
lis

h
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

in
g
le

 s
to

re
y
 r

e
a

r 
e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 r
e
p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
 

n
e

w
 t

w
o

 s
to

re
y
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 

  

 
W

ri
tt

e
n
 

R
e

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
s
 

N
o

rt
h

 
D

is
m

is
s
e

d
 –

 
0

6
.1

0
.0

6
 

1
0

.0
7

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

1
8
5

4
8

/W
F

 
B

U
C

/1
8

4
6

8
/2

 
M

r 
&

 M
rs

 
W

a
k
e

fi
e

ld
 

R
o

s
e

 C
o

tt
a

g
e

 
G

a
in

fi
e
ld

 
B

u
c
k
la

n
d

 
F

a
ri

n
g
d

o
n

 

D
e

m
o

lit
io

n
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 h

o
u
s
e

 
a

n
d

 g
a

ra
g

e
. 

 E
re

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
 a

n
d

 g
a

ra
g
e

. 

 
W

ri
tt

e
n

 
R

e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
s
 

N
o

rt
h

 
D

is
m

is
s
e

d
 –

 
2

6
.1

0
.0

6
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 17



P
u
b
lic

 I
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
ri
n
g
s
 P

ri
n
te

d
 1

7
/0

1
/2

0
0
7
 

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

 
A

p
p
e
a
l 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 

A
p
p
e
lla

n
t 

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

H
e
a
ri
n
g

/ 
P

u
b
lic

 
In

q
u
ir
y
/W

ri
tt
e
n
 

R
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

A
re

a
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 &

 
D

a
te

 

O
x
o

n
 

S
N

7
 8

Q
S

 
 

2
0

.0
7

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

2
0
3

1
7

/W
F

 
W

T
T

/1
0
0

2
/6

0
 

M
is

s
 A

 B
e

n
n

e
tt
 

&
 M

r 
G

 B
u

s
b

y
 

P
lo

t 
7

6
, 

D
e

e
rh

u
rs

t 
P

a
rk

, 
B

e
s
s
e

ls
le

ig
h

 
R

o
a

d
, 
W

o
o

tt
o
n

, 
O

x
o

n
, 

O
X

1
 5

L
F

 
 

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

re
n

c
h

 d
o
o

rs
 a

n
d

 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
s
ta

ir
c
a
s
e

 t
o
 a

llo
w

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

g
a

rd
e

n
 (

P
lo

t 
7

6
) 

 
W

ri
tt

e
n
 

R
e

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
s
 

N
o

rt
h

 
D

is
m

is
s
e

d
 –

 
0

9
.1

1
.0

6
 

2
4

.0
7

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

2
0
2

6
7

/W
F

 
A

B
G

/1
0

6
1

2
/1

6
 

M
r 

A
 U

 I
m

p
e

y
 

L
o

n
g

w
a

ll 
H

o
u
s
e

, 
N

o
rt

h
c
o
u

rt
 L

a
n

e
, 

A
b

in
g

d
o

n
, 

O
x
o

n
, 

O
X

1
4

 1
P

N
 

D
e

m
o

lis
h
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 d

o
u
b

le
 

g
a

ra
g

e
. 

 E
re

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 
a

 f
o
u

r 
b

e
d

ro
o
m

 b
u

n
g
a

lo
w

 a
n

d
 

d
e

ta
c
h

e
d
 g

a
ra

g
e

 b
lo

c
k
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 g
a

ra
g

in
g

 f
o

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 
b

u
n

g
a
lo

w
 a

n
d

 L
o

n
g

w
a

ll 
H

o
u

s
e
. 

 
(L

a
n

d
 a

d
ja

c
e
n

t 
to

 L
o

n
g

w
a

ll 
H

o
u

s
e

) 
 (

R
e

-s
u
b

m
is

s
io

n
) 

 

 
W

ri
tt

e
n
 

R
e

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
s
 

N
o

rt
h

 
D

is
m

is
s
e

d
 –

 
0

9
.1

1
.0

6
 

2
8

.0
7

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

1
9
9

2
2

/N
W

F
 

A
B

G
/1

9
5

0
4

 
L

e
d

ro
n
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 
L

td
 

L
a

n
d

 a
d

ja
c
e
n

t 
to

 
A

b
in

g
d
o

n
 

M
o

to
rc

y
c
le

s
, 

M
a

rc
h

a
m

 R
o

a
d

, 
A

b
in

g
d
o

n
 

F
o

u
r 

s
to

re
y
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 o

f 
1

4
 

o
n

e
 &

 t
w

o
 b

e
d

ro
o
m

 a
n
d

 s
tu

d
io

 
fl
a

ts
 w

it
h

 p
a

rk
in

g
 f

o
r 

tw
e

lv
e

 
c
a

rs
. 
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
b

ic
y
c
le

s
,r

e
fu

s
e

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
o

c
 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
w

o
rk

s
 

 

 
H

e
a

ri
n

g
 

8
th

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
0

6
 

N
o

rt
h

 
 

1
7

.1
1

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

3
0
4

9
7

/W
F

 
C

U
M

/1
8

8
4

6
/3

 
M

 &
 W

 
R

ic
h

a
rd

s
o
n

 
C

h
ils

w
e

ll 
F

a
rm

 
V

ill
a

, 
B

o
a

rs
 H

ill
, 

O
c
fo

rd
, 

O
X

1
 5

H
B

 

E
re

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 r
e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n

t 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 l
in

k
e

d
 g

a
ra

g
e

 
 

 
W

ri
tt

e
n
 

R
e

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
s
 

N
o

rt
h

 
 

2
0

.1
1

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

3
0
7

0
8

/W
F

 
A

B
G

/1
9

6
7

3
 

M
r 

&
 M

rs
 A

 
G

ri
m

e
s
 

3
1

 C
u

rt
is

 A
v
e

n
u
e

, 
A

b
in

g
d
o

n
, 

O
X

1
4

 
3

U
L

 

A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 t
o

 
g

ro
u

n
d
 f

lo
o

r 
to

 f
o

rm
 d

in
in

g
 r

o
o
m

 
a

n
d

 w
c
. 

A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 
e

x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o

r 
to

 f
o

rm
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
b
e

d
ro

o
m

 s
p

a
c
e

 
  

 
W

ri
tt

e
n
 

R
e

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
s
 

N
o

rt
h

 
 

2
1

.1
1

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

3
0
7

6
6

/W
F

 
C

U
M

/4
8

0
/6

 
M

r 
&

 M
rs

 
M

ic
h

a
e

l 
R

a
y
s
o

n
 

3
2

 H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 
C

u
m

n
o

r,
 O

x
fo

rd
, 

O
X

2
 9

P
E

 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

o
n

v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n
g

 
g

a
ra

g
e
 t

o
 f
o

rm
 a

 d
w

e
lli

n
g

 w
it
h

 
o

n
e

 b
e

d
ro

o
m

 a
n

d
 w

it
h

 p
a

rk
in

g
 

 

 
W

ri
tt

e
n
 

R
e

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
s
 

N
o

rt
h

 
 

0
5

.1
2

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

3
1
4

7
9

/N
W

F
 

M
A

R
/1

9
7

6
1

 
T

ry
 H

o
m

e
s
 L

td
 

S
it
e

 a
t 
T

im
b

e
r 

Y
a

rd
, 

P
a

c
k
h
o

rs
e

 
L

a
n

e
 M

a
rc

h
a
m

 
A

b
in

g
d
o

n
. 

O
X

1
3

 
6

N
T

 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
4

 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 

W
ri
tt

e
n

 
R

e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
s
 

N
o

rt
h

 
 

Page 18



P
u
b
lic

 I
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
ri
n
g
s
 P

ri
n
te

d
 1

7
/0

1
/2

0
0
7
 

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

 
A

p
p
e
a
l 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 

A
p
p
e
lla

n
t 

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

H
e
a
ri
n
g

/ 
P

u
b
lic

 
In

q
u
ir
y
/W

ri
tt
e
n
 

R
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

A
re

a
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 &

 
D

a
te

 

 

2
4

.0
3

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

1
0
4

0
2

 
S

T
E

/1
1

4
8

8
/7

 
 A

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 L
P

A
 

R
e

fu
s
a
l 
o

f 
a

n
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

 

O
S

G
 C

o
-o

p
 

5
5

 T
h

e
 C

a
u
s
e

w
a

y
 

S
te

v
e

n
to

n
 

A
b

in
g

d
o

n
 

O
x
o

n
 

O
X

1
3

 6
S

E
 

 

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 m
o

d
if
y
 t
h

e
 

p
a

rk
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 S

T
E

/1
1

4
8

8
/4

. 

  
H

e
a

ri
n

g
 

 
2

2
.1

1
.0

6
 

S
o

u
th

 
A

llo
w

e
d

 
 

0
4

.0
1

.0
7

 

1
0

.0
4

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

1
1
7

2
5

 
E

H
E

/1
9

6
5

/1
0

 
 A

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 L
P

A
 

R
e

fu
s
a
l 
o

f 
a

n
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

 

L
 W

e
lls

 
G

re
e

n
s
a
n

d
s
 

R
e

a
d

in
g

 R
o

a
d

 
E

a
s
t 

H
e

n
d

re
d

 
W

a
n
ta

g
e

 
O

x
o

n
 

O
X

1
2

 8
J
E

 
 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
ta

rm
a

c
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

ro
a

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 
a
n

 
a

re
a

 o
f 
H

a
rd

-s
ta

n
d

in
g

 
s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 a

n
 E

a
rt

h
 B

u
n

d
. 

(R
e

tr
o

s
p
e

c
ti
v
e

) 

 
P

u
b

lic
 I

n
q

u
ir

y
 

D
a

te
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o

n
fi

rm
e

d
 

S
o

u
th

 
 

2
4

.0
4

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

1
2
8

6
0

 
W

C
H

/1
9

7
4

/1
2

 
 A

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 L
P

A
 

R
e

fu
s
a
l 
o

f 
a

n
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

D
 M

a
jo

r 
T

h
e

 L
e

a
th

e
r 

B
o

tt
le

 
C

h
a

llo
w

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 

W
e
s
t 

C
h
a

llo
w

 
W

a
n
ta

g
e

 
O

x
o

n
 

S
N

7
 8

N
T

 
 

C
o

n
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
re

s
ta

u
ra

n
t 

in
to

 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
. 

 E
re

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
n
e

w
 

th
a

tc
h

e
d

 c
o

u
n

tr
y
 c

o
tt

a
g
e

. 
 

R
e

v
is

e
d

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 o

n
to

 
F

a
ri

n
g
d

o
n

 R
o

a
d

. 

H
e

a
ri

n
g

 
2

1
.1

1
.0

6
 

S
o

u
th

 
D

is
m

is
s
e

d
 

 
2

0
.1

2
.0

6
 

1
8

.0
5

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

1
5
0

2
6

/W
F

 
W

A
N

/1
9

2
8
3

 
A

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 L
P

A
 

R
e

fu
s
a
l 
o

f 
a

n
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

M
r 

a
n

d
 M

rs
 

H
a

rr
is

 
2

 O
g

b
o

u
rn

e
 C

lo
s
e

 
W

a
n
ta

g
e

 
O

x
o

n
 

O
X

1
2

 9
E

R
 

 

F
ir

s
t 
fl
o

o
r 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
. 

W
ri
tt

e
n
 r

e
p
s
 

S
o

u
th

 
D

is
m

is
s
e

d
 

 
0

6
.0

9
.0

6
 

0
1

.0
6

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

1
3
2

7
9

 
E

C
H

/1
8

9
2

1
/1

 
A

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 L
P

A
 

R
e

fu
s
a
l 
o

f 
a

n
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

 

B
H

P
 H

a
rw

o
o

d
 

L
a

n
d

 O
p
p

o
s
it
e

 
V

O
W

H
 D

e
p
o

t 
C

h
a

llo
w

 R
o

a
d

 
W

a
n
ta

g
e

 
O

x
o

n
 

 

C
o

n
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 b

a
rn

 t
o

 
a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

 o
ff

ic
e

s
. 

H
e

a
ri

n
g

 
0

4
.0

1
.0

7
 

S
o

u
th

 
 

1
7

.0
7

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/E

/0
6

/2
0

1
9
0

9
9

/W
F

 
S

T
A

/1
4

7
0

7
/3

-L
B

 
A

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 L
P

A
 

R
e

fu
s
a
l 
o

f 
a

n
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

 

M
rs

 C
ra

d
o

c
k
 

5
 C

h
u

rc
h

 G
re

e
n

 
S

ta
n

fo
rd

 I
n

 T
h

e
 

V
a

le
 

F
a

ri
n

g
d

o
n

 
O

x
o

n
 

S
N

7
 8

L
Q

 
 

L
o

ft
 c

o
n

v
e

rs
io

n
 w

it
h

 e
y
e

b
ro

w
 

d
o

rm
e

r.
 

 
W

ri
tt

e
n
 R

e
p
s
 

S
o

u
th

 
A

llo
w

e
d

 
 

0
9

.0
1

.0
7

 

3
1

.0
8

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

2
1
2

1
9

/N
W

F
 

W
A

N
/8

6
0

8
/9

 
A

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 L
P

A
 

R
e

fu
s
a
l 
o

f 
a

n
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

 

V
a

k
k
a

s
 

C
o

k
g

e
z
k
i 

3
0

 W
a
lli

n
g

fo
rd

 
S

tr
e

e
t 

W
a
n
ta

g
e

 
O

x
o

n
 

O
X

1
2

 8
A

X
 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 

W
A

N
/8

6
0

8
/3

 c
o

n
d
it
io

n
 2

 t
o

 
e

x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 t
im

e
s
 t

o
 

F
ri

d
a

y
 a

n
d

 S
a

tu
rd

a
y
 1

1
p

m
 t
o

 
1

a
m

 a
n

d
 S

u
n

d
a

y
 t

o
 T

h
u

rs
d

a
y
 

W
ri
tt

e
n
 R

e
p
s
 

S
o

u
th

 
D

is
m

is
s
e

d
 

 
0

9
.0

1
.0

7
 

Page 19



P
u
b
lic

 I
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
ri
n
g
s
 P

ri
n
te

d
 1

7
/0

1
/2

0
0
7
 

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

 
A

p
p
e
a
l 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 

A
p
p
e
lla

n
t 

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

H
e
a
ri
n
g

/ 
P

u
b
lic

 
In

q
u
ir
y
/W

ri
tt
e
n
 

R
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

A
re

a
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 &

 
D

a
te

 

 
1

1
p

m
 t

o
 m

id
n

ig
h
t.

 

0
6

.0
9

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

2
3
7

5
5

/W
F

 
W

A
N

/1
6

1
4
3

/1
 

A
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 L
P

A
 

R
e

fu
s
a
l 
o

f 
a

n
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

 

M
r 

a
n

d
 M

rs
 

T
h

o
m

p
s
o
n

 
H

a
m

 M
ill

 
Ic

k
le

to
n

 R
o

a
d

 
W

a
n
ta

g
e

 
O

x
o

n
 

O
X

1
2

 9
J
A

 
  

D
e

m
o

lit
io

n
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

g
a

ra
g

e
/a

n
n
e

x
e

. 
 E

re
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

t 
g

a
ra

g
e

/a
n

n
e

x
e

. 
W

ri
tt

e
n
 R

e
p
s
 

S
o

u
th

 
A

ll
o

w
e

d
 

 
0

9
.0

1
.0

7
 

0
8

.0
9

.0
6

  
  

A
P

P
/H

H
/0

6
/3

0
6

 
H

H
 2

/0
5

 
M

r 
J
 F

 L
lo

y
d

 
T

h
e

 P
a

d
d

o
c
k
 

1
8

 L
o
n

g
c
o

t 
R

o
a
d

 
S

h
ri

v
e

n
h

a
m

 
S

N
6

 8
H

E
 

 

A
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 R

e
m

e
d

ia
l 
N

o
ti
c
e

 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
in

g
 a

 H
ig

h
 H

e
d

g
e

 
 

S
o

u
th

 
 

1
7

.1
0

.0
5

 
A

P
P

/3
1

2
0

/C
/0

5
/ 

2
0

0
3

5
1

9
 

E
H

E
/1

9
6

5
/7

-E
 

M
r 

L
 W

e
lls

 
G

re
e

n
s
a
n

d
s
 

E
a

s
t 

H
e

n
d

re
d

 
O

X
1

2
 8

J
G

 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

w
it
h

o
u
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
u

s
e

 f
ro

m
 u

s
e
 f

o
r 

a
g

ri
c
u

lt
u

re
 t
o

 
s
to

ra
g

e
 o

f 
n

o
n

-a
g

ri
c
u
lt
u

ra
l 

it
e

m
s
, 
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 a

n
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

to
ra

g
e

 o
f 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
. 

 

 
P

u
b

lic
 I

n
q

u
ir

y
 

 
  

  
  

 2
7

.2
.0

7
   

S
o

u
th

 
  

2
7

.1
0

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

2
6
7

4
9

/N
W

F
 

M
IL

/1
7

3
6

2
/2

 
A

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 L
P

A
 

R
e

fu
s
a
l 
o

f 
a

n
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

M
r 

A
 W

ic
h

e
llo

 
B

ra
m

le
y
 C

o
tt
a

g
e

 
M

ilt
o

n
 H

ill
 

S
te

v
e

n
to

n
 

A
b

in
g

d
o

n
 

O
x
o

n
 

O
X

1
4

 4
D

P
 

  

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
 o

n
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

p
a

d
d

o
c
k
. 

C
h

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
u
s
e

 o
f 
tr

a
in

 
s
e

t 
w

it
h

in
 g

a
rd

e
n

 t
o

 v
is

it
o

r 
a

tt
ra

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 t
o
ile

t 
b

lo
c
k
. 

W
ri
tt

e
n
 r

e
p
s
 

S
o

u
th

 
W

it
h

d
ra

w
n

 
 

2
8

.1
1

.0
6

 

3
1

.1
0

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

2
8
3

8
1

/N
W

F
 

A
R

D
/1

7
9

0
4

/2
 

T
h

e
 B

a
ri

n
g

 
F

a
m

ily
 

A
rd

in
g

to
n

 H
o

u
s
e

 
C

h
u

rc
h

 S
tr

e
e

t 
A

rd
in

g
to

n
 

W
a
n
ta

g
e

 
O

x
o

n
 

O
X

1
2

 8
Q

A
 

 

D
e

m
o

lit
io

n
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

g
re

e
n

h
o

u
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
u

tb
u

ild
in

g
s
 

a
n

d
 e

re
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
n
e

w
 d

w
e

lli
n

g
 

a
n

d
 g

a
ra

g
e
. 

H
e

a
ri

n
g

 
 

S
o

u
th

 
W

it
h

d
ra

w
n

 
2

2
.1

2
.0

6
 

2
3

.1
1

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

2
9
8

0
0

/W
F

 
G

R
O

/1
9

1
4

3
/1

 
J
o

h
n
 B

e
ll 

5
A

 K
in

g
fi
s
h

e
rs

 
G

ro
v
e

 
W

a
n
ta

g
e

 
O

x
o

n
 

O
X

1
2

 7
J
L

 
 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

n
e

 d
w

e
lli

n
g

 
a

n
d

 a
 g

a
ra

g
e

 (
L
a

n
d

 a
d

jo
in

in
g

 
5

A
) 

W
ri
tt

e
n
 r

e
p
s
 

S
o

u
th

 
 

0
5

.1
2

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

3
1
9

1
3

 
S

T
A

/8
7

6
3

/4
 

S
te

p
h

e
n

 
M

u
n

d
a

y
 

M
e

a
d

o
w

la
n

d
s
  

3
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t 
E

re
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 s
m

a
ll 

s
c
a
le

 w
in

d
 

tu
rb

in
e

 
W

ri
tt

e
n
 r

e
p
s
 

S
o

u
th

 
 

Page 20



P
u
b
lic

 I
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
ri
n
g
s
 P

ri
n
te

d
 1

7
/0

1
/2

0
0
7
 

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

 
A

p
p
e
a
l 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 

A
p
p
e
lla

n
t 

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

H
e
a
ri
n
g

/ 
P

u
b
lic

 
In

q
u
ir
y
/W

ri
tt
e
n
 

R
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

A
re

a
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 &

 
D

a
te

 

S
ta

n
fo

rd
 I

n
 T

h
e

 
V

a
le

 
F

a
ri

n
g
d

o
n

 
O

x
o

n
 

S
N

7
 8

L
H

 

1
1

.1
2

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

3
1
4

0
5

/W
F

 
L

O
N

/1
6

2
0

5
/6

-X
 

M
r 

D
 R

id
g

w
a

y
 

H
ill

 V
ie

w
 

S
h

ri
v
e

n
h

a
m

 R
o

a
d

 
L

o
n

g
c
o

t 
F

a
ri

n
g
d

o
n

 
O

x
o

n
 

S
N

7
 7

T
L

 

O
u

tl
in

e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

e
re

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

n
e

 d
w

e
lli

n
g

. 

W
ri
tt

e
n
 r

e
p
s
 

S
o

u
th

 
 

2
0

.1
2

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

3
3
2

1
8

/N
W

F
 

E
H

E
/1

9
6

5
/1

2
 

L
 W

e
lls

 
G

re
e

n
s
a
n

d
s
 

R
e

a
d

in
g

 R
o

a
d

 
E

a
s
t 

H
e

n
d

re
d

 
W

a
n
ta

g
e

 
O

x
o

n
 

O
X

1
2

 8
J
E

 

R
e

tr
o

s
p
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
te

n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
g

u
e

s
t 
h

o
u
s
e

 
a

n
d

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
. 

P
u

b
lic

 I
n
q

u
ir

y
 

S
o

u
th

 
  

Page 21



P
u
b
lic

 I
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
ri
n
g
s
 P

ri
n
te

d
 1

7
/0

1
/2

0
0
7
 

 

2
0

.1
2

.0
6

 
A

P
P

/V
3

1
2

0
/A

/0
6

/2
0

3
3
2

2
1

 
E

H
E

/1
9

6
5

/1
3

 
L

 W
e
lls

 
G

re
e

n
s
a
n

d
s
 

R
e

a
d

in
g

 R
o

a
d

 
E

a
s
t 

H
e

n
d

re
d

 
W

a
n
ta

g
e

 
O

x
o

n
 

O
X

1
2

 8
J
E

 

R
e

tr
o

s
p
e

c
ti
v
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 
p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 r

e
g

u
la

ri
s
e

 a
n
d

 
re

ta
in

 t
h

e
 s

it
in

g
 o

f 
7
 t

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o
n

 u
n
it
s
 

P
u

b
lic

 i
n
q

u
ir

y
 

S
o

u
th

 
 

     G
:\
A

d
m

in
\C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 S

c
h

e
d
u
le

s
\L

is
t 

o
f 

F
o
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g
 P

u
b
lic

 I
n
q

u
ir

ie
s
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
ri
n

g
s
 

Page 22



Report 153/06 

ECH/235/43 – Worters (London) Ltd. 
Erection of two industrial units for B1, B2 and B8 uses. 
Land adjoining Unit 2, W & G Estate, East Challow 
 
1.0 The Proposal 
 
1.1 This application seeks planning permission for the erection of 2 industrial buildings within the 

W & G Estate, East Challow.  The proposed buildings would each amount to 445.5 square 
metres of industrial floor space including some ancillary office space.  The majority of this floor 
space would be single storey although part of the office space would be at first floor level. 

 
1.2 W & G Estate is an established employment site and the location of the proposed buildings is 

currently a vacant hard standing, but within the confines of the existing developed area. 
 
1.3 The scheme includes car parking for 17 vehicles located to the front of the proposed buildings. 
 
1.4 The buildings would be constructed of metal cladding and concrete blocks similar to other 

buildings within the estate.  
 
1.5 Extracts from the application drawings are at Appendix 1. 
 
1.6 The application comes to Committee as the Parish Council objects. 
 
2.0 Planning History 
 
2.1 A previous planning application was submitted in November 2005 for the erection of 2 

buildings on the site (Ref: ECH/235/42).  This was withdrawn in January 2006 due to concerns 
raised over the lack of car parking provision.  The scheme included parking for 8 cars only and 
had a similar floor space as the current proposal. 

 
3.0 Planning Policies 
 
3.1 Policy E11 of the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan identifies the W & G Estate as a 

rural multi-user employment site and states that the loss of business land and premises to 
other uses will not be permitted.  New business development on vacant land within the site will 
be permitted subject to the criteria set out in Policy E8 which refers to local rural business 
sites. 

 
3.2 Policy E8 states that development or redevelopment on the site will be limited to premises of 

up to 500 sqm floor area for occupation by a single business. 
 
3.3 Policies DC1 and DC5 of the adopted Local Plan refer to the design of new development, and 

access and parking considerations. 
 
4.0 Consultations 
 
4.1 East Challow Parish Council objects to the application.  Their full comments are attached at 

Appendix 2. 
 
4.2 The Council’s Environmental Health Officer raises no objections subject to a condition 

requiring the investigation and treatment of any contaminated land. 
 
4.3 The County Engineer raises no objections subject to conditions. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 23



Report 153/06 

5.0 Officer Comments 
 
5.1 The main issues to consider in determining this application are; i) whether the principle of 

further development is acceptable in this location; ii) the design and visual impact of the 
proposed building; iii) whether there is sufficient parking provision to serve the proposed units. 

 
5.2 The W & G Estate is allocated in the adopted Local Plan as an employment site.  The location 

of the proposed buildings is within the allocated area and therefore the principle of further 
employment generating uses is acceptable in this location. 

 
5.3 The buildings are proposed in a utilitarian design of concrete block and metal cladding, similar 

to other units within the estate.  The building is also of a similar height (8.4m to ridge) to others 
within the estate, therefore your Officer do not consider that the proposal would appear 
prominent or out of keeping with the surrounding buildings. 

 
5.4 The Parish Council has raised concern over the additional traffic generated by the proposal 

and its impact on the surrounding road network.  However, as this is an allocated employment 
site and the proposal would not extend beyond the allocated area, refusal on these grounds 
could not be justified.  A condition is recommended preventing the insertion of a mezzanine 
floor within the proposed buildings to control any increase in floor space which may be 
proposed at a later date. 

 
5.5 A previous application for buildings in this location was withdrawn due to the lack of car 

parking provision to serve the proposed units.  This current scheme includes 17 parking 
spaces.  County Council parking standards for this area of floor space would require 4 spaces 
for a B8 use (i.e. storage and distribution) and 17 for a B2 use (i.e. general industry).  A B1 
use (i.e. offices, research and development, and light industry) would require significantly 
more spaces however it is recommended that the B1 element is restricted to B1(c), light 
industrial use, (apart from the small first-floor offices), to prevent a high traffic generating office 
use occupying the units.  The County Engineer has no objections to the scheme subject to a 
condition to this effect.   

 
6.0 Recommendation  

 
6.1 It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. TL1 Time Limit – Full Application 
 

2. MC2 Submission of Material Samples 
 

3. HY25 Car Park Layout (Building) 
 

4. ID12  Restriction on Use 
 

5. ID23  Mezzanine Floors 

Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Report 153/06 

GRO/4788/3 – Mr & Mrs Lagden 
Single and two storey rear extensions. 
9 Vale Avenue, Grove, OX12 7LU 
 
1.0 The Proposal 
 
1.1 This application seeks planning permission for the erection of two storey and single storey rear 

extensions on the rear (north) elevation of the property.  Measuring 2.5 metres deep by 8.3 
metres wide, the proposed two storey extension would be built over an existing single storey 
extension.  The eaves height would be 5 metres above ground level, and the gabled roof over 
the proposed extension would rise to a maximum ridge height of 7.3 metres.  The proposed 
single storey rear extension would extend out beyond the existing rear extension by 2 metres, 
and it would be 8.3 metres wide, with an eaves height of 2.5 metres, and a pitched roof sloping 
towards the two storey extension with a ridge height of 3.3 metres.  The application drawings 
and site plan are at Appendix 1. 

 
1.2  The application comes to Committee due to an objection received from Grove Parish Council. 
 
2.0 Planning History 
 
2.1 Planning permission was granted in 1979 for an ‘Extension to provide new kitchen and dining 

room together with internal alterations’. 
 
2.2 Permission was granted in 1988 for ‘Ground and first floor extensions at front of dwelling to 

provide additional accommodation’. 
 
2.3 Application GRO/4788/2 for ‘Garage conversion.  New windows in side elevations.  Single and 

two storey rear extensions’, was withdrawn in September 2006.  A copy of the withdrawn 
plans is at Appendix 2. 

 
3.0 Planning Policies 
 
3.1 Policy H24 of the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan allows for extensions to existing 

dwellings provided various criteria are satisfactory, including; i) the impact on the character and 
appearance of the area as a whole, ii) the impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties in 
terms of privacy, overlooking and overshadowing, and iii) whether adequate off-street parking, 
turning space and garden space remain. 

 
3.2 Policies DC1 and DC9 of the Local Plan refer to the design of new development and the impact 

on neighbouring properties. 
 
4.0 Consultations 
 
4.1 Grove Parish Council objects to the proposal stating ‘The loss of garage space to make way 

for a playroom could necessitate on street parking.  The steep incline on the driveway may 
discourage the owners from using it to park their cars and by parking on the road the current 
parking problems at Vale Avenue could be exacerbated’. 

 
4.2 The County Engineer’s comments will be reported at the Meeting. 
 
5.0 Officer Comments 
 
5.1 The main issues in determining this application are the impact on the street scene, the potential 

impact on neighbouring properties, and the impact on highway safety. 

Agenda Item 11

Page 32



Report 153/06 

 
5.2 Given the position of the proposed extension on the rear (north) elevation of the property, your 

Officers consider that the proposal would not harm the character and appearance of the area. 
 
5.3 Your Officers also consider that the proposal would not have a detrimental impact on the 

adjoining properties to the east and west.  The proposal does not encroach beyond a 40 degree 
line taken from the edge of the nearest first floor windows of neighbouring properties, and it is 
consequently felt that the proposal would not be unacceptable in respect to loss of light or over 
dominance.  It is not proposed to add any additional windows at first floor level in either the east 
or west elevations.  However, to prevent possible overlooking in the future, it is recommended 
that permitted development rights be removed in respect to the insertion of new windows in the 
east and west elevations of the development without the prior grant of planning permission (see 
Condition 3 below). 

 
5.4 In respect to the objections raised by the Parish Council, the proposed garage conversion could 

be undertaken under the provisions of the General Permitted Development Order, and as such 
does not require planning permission.  Given that it is not proposed to add any additional 
bedrooms to the property, and the fact that two spaces would remain in front of the dwelling, it is 
your Officer’s opinion that two parking spaces for a four bedroom property would be acceptable, 
and the proposal would not be detrimental to highway safety. 

 
6.0 Recommendation 

 

6.1 Subject to the County Engineer raising no objection it is recommended that planning 
permission be granted, subject to the following conditions:- 

 
1. TL1  Time Limit – Full Application. 
 
2. RE1  Matching Materials. 

 
3. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General permitted 

Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order) no windows 
shall be inserted in the east or west elevations of the development hereby approved 
without the prior grant of planning permission. 

Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Report 153/06 

CUM/8320/1 – Mr & Mrs G Philip 
Demolition of existing house and garage.  Erection of two storey replacement building 
comprising of 4x2 bed and 1x1 bed flats.  Erection of 6x3 bed houses and erection of a 1x1 
bed coach house with associated off-street parking and landscaping. 
40 Cumnor Hill, Oxford, OX2 9HB 
 
1.0 This application was considered by Committee on 8th January 2007, when it was recommended 

for approval.  Committee however, resolved to refuse planning permission and delegated the 
decision to agree the reasons for refusal to the Deputy Director in consultation with the Chair / 
Vice Chair, the Ward Member and Opposition Spokesman.  Notwithstanding this consultation, 
the Vice Chair has requested the matter is referred back to the Committee for agreement.  An 
extract of the minutes of that meeting is attached as Appendix 1. 

 
2.0 The following reasons are suggested, and are considered by Officers to accurately reflect 

Committee’s resolution to refuse planning permission: 
 

1. Having regard to its prominent and elevated location, the overall design, height, bulk, scale 
and massing of the proposed building on the road frontage represents an intrusive and 
inappropriate form of development which is detrimental to the character of Cumnor Hill.  As 
such the proposal is contrary to Policies H10 and DC1 of the adopted Vale of White Horse 
Local Plan 2011 and to advice contained in PPS1 “Delivering Sustainable Development” 
and PPS3 “Housing”. 
 

2. The proposed development, by reason of its juxtaposition with neighbouring dwellings, 
represents an unneighbourly form of development that is harmful to the amenities of those 
properties, in particular no.36 Cumnor Hill, in terms of overshadowing, over dominance and 
overlooking.  As such the proposal is contrary to Policies DC1 and DC9 of the adopted Vale 
of White Horse Local Plan 2011. 
 

3. In the absence of information to prove otherwise, the proposed development would be at 
direct risk of flooding and would increase the risk of flooding elsewhere contrary to Policies 
DC13 and DC14 of the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 and to the advice 
contained in PPS25 “Development and Flood Risk”. 
 

4. In the absence of financial contributions to meet the need generated by the additional 
housing, the proposal would result in a detrimental impact on existing services and social 
infrastructure. As such the proposal is contrary to Policy DC8 of the adopted Vale of White 
Horse Local Plan 2011. 
 
 

Agenda Item 12

Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Report 153/06 

GRO/11225/2 – Mr & Mrs S Hamblin 
Demolition of existing garden room.  Erection of a two storey rear extension & new 
conservatory. 
7 Mandhill Close, Grove, OX12 7HY 
 
1.0 The Proposal 
 
1.1 This application seeks planning permission for the demolition of an existing garden room on the 

rear (north-east) elevation of the property, and the erection of a two storey extension and new 
conservatory on the same elevation.  The proposed two storey extension measures 5.2 metres 
wide by 3.1 metres deep, with an eaves height of approximately 4.9 metres, and a hipped roof 
with a maximum overall ridge height of 7.1 metres.  The proposed conservatory extends out in a 
south easterly direction from the proposed two storey extension, and measures 3.1 metres wide 
by 3.2 metres deep, with an eaves height of 2.2 metres and a ridge height of approximately 2.75 
metres.  The application drawings and site plan are at Appendix 1. 

 
1.2   The application comes to Committee at the request of the Local member, Councillor Pam 

Westwood. 
 
2.0 Planning History 
 
2.1 Planning permission was granted in 1989 for the ‘Erection of extension to existing dwelling to 

improve accommodation and to provide a granny flat’. 
 
2.2   Application GRO/11225/1 was granted permission in August 2003 for the erection of a ‘Two 

storey extension and conservatory on the side (north-west) elevation of the property, which has 
been implemented’.  A copy of the approved plans is at Appendix 2. 

 
3.0 Planning Policies 
 
3.1 Policy H24 of the adopted Vale of White Local Plan allows for extensions to existing dwellings 

provided various criteria are satisfactory, including; i) the impact on the character and 
appearance of the area as a whole, ii) the impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties in 
terms of privacy, overlooking and overshadowing, and iii) whether adequate off-street parking, 
turning space and garden space remain. 

 
3.2   Policies DC1 and DC9 of the Local Plan refer to the design of new development and the impact 

on neighbouring properties. 
 
4.0 Consultations 
 
4.1 Grove Parish Council does not object to the proposal, but states ‘In principle we have no 

objections to the proposals.  However we ask that consideration is given to the possible loss 
of light from number 8 and the issue of the window overlooking that property’. 

 
4.2 The County Engineer has no objection to the proposal subject to conditions. 
 
4.3 One neighbour letter of objection has been received, which refers to overlooking from the 

proposed first floor window on the north elevation, the reduction of light into the kitchen and 
overshadowing of the garden. 

  
5.0 Officer Comments 
 
5.1 The main issues in determining this application are the impact on the street scene, and the 

Agenda Item 13

Page 44



Report 153/06 

potential impact on neighbouring properties. 
 
5.2   Given the position of the proposed extension on the rear (north-east) elevation of the property, 

your Officers consider that the proposal would not harm the character and appearance of the 
area. 

 
5.3   The application site is situated to the south of No.8 Mandhill Close.  Given the position of the 

proposed extension, and the existence of a side extension to No.8, there will be some 
overshadowing of No. 8.  It is your Officer’s opinion, however, that the loss of light to No.8 is not 
significant enough to warrant refusal of the application.  The proposed roof of the extension is 
hipped, which aids the situation, and the angle of the two properties on their plots also helps to 
lessen the impact on the rear of No.8. 

 
5.4   As the proposal currently stands, there is an overlooking problem caused by the proposed first 

floor bedroom window on the north-west elevation of the proposed two storey extension.  The 
removal of this window has been discussed and agreed with the agent.  However, at the time of 
writing this report amended plans had not been received.  It is therefore recommended that the 
window be omitted from the proposed scheme and permitted development rights be removed in 
respect to the insertion of new windows in this elevation (see Conditions 3 and 4 below). 

 
6.0 Recommendation 

 

6.1 That planning permission be granted, subject to the following conditions:- 
 

1. TL1 Time Limit – Full Application. 
 
2. RE1 Matching Materials. 

 
3. Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, the first floor bedroom window 

in the north-west elevation of the development hereby permitted shall be omitted. 
 

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order) no windows 
shall be inserted in the north-west elevation of the development hereby permitted without 
the prior grant of planning permission. 

Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Report 153/06 

STE/12024/3 – Mr. R. Tyrell. 
Erection of a Dwelling and Part Demolition of Wall 
Land at The Gables, 39 The Green, Steventon, Abingdon, Oxon. OX13 6RR. 
 
STE/12024/4-CA – Mr. R. Tyrell. 
Part Demolition of Wall. 
The Gables, 39 The Green, Steventon, Abingdon, Oxon. OX13 6RR. 
 
1.0 The Proposal 
 
1.1 The Gables is a large detached house with a frontage onto the northern end of The Green, 

Steventon.  Although it is quite an interesting  Victorian building  with decorative brickwork and 
a gothic appearance, it is not a Listed Building as seems to have been assumed by the 
applicant and consequently by members of the public. It has a large garden on its south side, 
which provides a substantial gap between the existing property and the neighbouring semi-
detached cottages to the south. This is defined by a 1.5 metre high brick wall along the 
frontage and a 2 metre high brick wall at the rear, which abut another brick wall along the 
boundary with the next door property on the south side. There is a gated access from The 
Green on its north side and the driveway runs to a yard area to the rear of the property. 

 
1.2 These Planning and Conservation Area consent applications are a resubmission of revised 

proposals for the site involving the erection of a house in the side garden of The Gables. This 
also involves the demolition of a 2 metre high brick wall at the rear of the garden and the 
creation of a pedestrian access through the front boundary wall. The existing access will serve 
the new house by extending the driveway to run along the rear boundary of the curtilage to a 
new detached two bay garage.  

 
1.3 The new house is a substantial 4-bedroomed dwelling with a wide frontage and a gable to the 

rear. It is to be of brick and tile construction subject to later determination. It has a traditional 
design with regular proportions and is scaled to fit in with the adjoining properties. The 
application drawings, which include a street scene, are at Appendix 1. 

 
1.4 The applications come before Committee as the Parish Council has objected. 
 
2.0 Planning History 
 
2.1 A previous scheme for the site was submitted in June last year. Because of reservations about 

the design of the house the applications were withdrawn to allow further discussions. The 
present applications have been submitted following negotiations with your Officers. 

 
3.0 Planning Policies 
 
3.1 Policy H11 of the adopted Local Plan permits new housing development such as this within 

the built up area of Steventon provided that the scale, layout, mass and design of the proposal 
does not harm the form , structure or character of the settlement or result in the loss of 
facilities important to the local community, including areas of formal or informal open space. 

 
3.2 Policy DC1 permits development that is of a high quality of design in terms of layout, scale, 

mass, height, detailing, materials to be used, relationship with adjoining buildings and takes 
into account local distinctiveness and character. 

 
3.3 Policy DC5 requires safe and convenient access and parking. 
 
3.4 Policy DC9 will not permit development that would harm the amenities of adjoining properties 

or the wider environment in terms of, amongst other things, loss of privacy, daylight or 
sunlight, dominance or visual intrusion. 

 

Agenda Item 14

Page 54



Report 153/06 

3.5 Policy HE1 requires development to preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the 
Conservation Area. 

 
4.0 Consultations 
 
4.1 Steventon Parish Council objects for the following reasons: 

“The Parish Council fully supports the objections submitted by the neighbours and considers 
that all the points they raised must be taken into account when determining this application. 
The proposal would change the character of the conservation area, demolition of a grade 2 
listed wall and a breach at the front for pedestrian access. The wall and enclosed garden 
constitutes an integral part of the building.” 

 
4.2 The County Engineer has made no observations. His comments will be reported to the 

Meeting. 
 
4.3 Two local residents have raised planning objections on the following common grounds: 
 

• Concerns about drainage; 

• Out of character with the Conservation Area and spoil the view from The Green; 

• The loss of the garden and the integrity of its walls affects the setting and character of The 
Gables; 

• The south side of the house is extremely close to the side boundary wall and could destroy the 
roots of a Holly tree which would then result in danger; 

• Little Green is common land and the roads are in a bad state of repair. They cannot cope with 
the proposed development. 

 
5.0 Officer Comments 
 
5.1 The principle of an infill development on this plot would accord with Policy H11 if the design 

and other considerations set out can be satisfied. The previous submission was withdrawn as 
your Officers were not satisfied with the quality of design on this sensitive site. Negotiations 
have taken place and the design now submitted is considered to meet the requirements of 
Policy H11. The siting, massing and traditional design results in a well proportioned 
appearance that fits in with the scale and character of its surroundings. 

 
5.2 As the relationship with the adjoining buildings is sympathetically handled and the symmetry of 

the design is of a high quality, appropriate planning conditions controlling the materials to be 
used will mean that the development complies with Policy DC1. 

 
5.3 The use of the existing access to serve the new plot is considered satisfactory in traffic terms 

and because of its generous width, nearly 6 metres, and the alignment of the drive, these 
arrangements will not have a detrimental affect on the amenities of the existing house. As 
such, subject to the County Engineer raising no objections, Policy DC5 is satisfied. 

 
5.4 The scheme has been designed to take into account the relationship of the development with 

The Gables and the neighbouring property to ensure that there is no overlooking involved. 
This is achieved as there are no living room windows on the upper floor of the new house on 
its side elevations. A generous width is retained between The Gables and the new dwelling 
and the existing house is left with a good sized garden. This also ensures that there will be no 
problems of overshadowing. Although there is a closer relationship between the new house 
and the property to the south, that property has a blank elevation facing the site. There is also 
a 2 metre high brick boundary wall between the existing and proposed properties. 
Furthermore, there is a mature holly tree on the neighbour’s side where they have a 
conservatory. Because of the orientation of the properties there will be no over shadowing or 
loss of daylight. The development is therefore compliant with Policy DC9. 

 
5.5 In the light of the above considerations and the imposition of appropriate conditions in respect 

of materials and the treatment of details, it is concluded that the development will help to 

Page 55



Report 153/06 

preserve and enhance the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and comply 
with Policy HE1. 

 
5.6 In relation to the other planning issues raised in objections, planning conditions are proposed 

to require the submission and approval of a satisfactory scheme for foul and surface water 
drainage before development commences. The Council’s Arboricultural Officer has been 
consulted about the likely impact of the development on the neighbouring holly tree and he 
confirms that whilst any remaining vigour, bearing in mind the age of the tree, might be 
impaired, the development should not make the tree dangerous. The existing 2 metre 
boundary wall between the tree and the development site should afford adequate protection. 

 
6.0 Recommendations 

 

 

STE/12024/3  
 
6.1 Subject to the County Engineer raising no objections, it is recommended that the planning 

application be approved subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. TL1 Time Limit – Full Application. 
 
2. MC2  Submission of Materials (Samples) 
 
3. CN5  Submission of brick details 
 
4. CN8  Submission of full Details 
 
5. RE9  Submit/Drainage Details Surface W 
 
 
STE/12024/4-CA 
 
6.2 It is recommended that Conservation Area Consent be granted subject to the following 

condition: 
 
1.   TL4  Time Limit – LB/CA Consent 

Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Report 153/06 

ABG/19785/1 – Mrs R Vanderhyde 
Demolition of existing porch, utility room and detached garage.  Erection of flank and rear 
extensions and conversion of existing dwelling to create 4x1 bed apartments (resubmission of 
ABG/19785). 
15 Springfield Drive, Abingdon. OX14 1JG 
 
1.0 The Proposal 
 
1.1 This application seeks full planning permission for the erection of a side and rear extension to 15 

Springfield Drive together with the conversion of the extended dwelling to create 4 x 1 bedroom 
flats with associated parking to the front (1 space for each apartment).   

 
1.2 The property is currently a 3 bedroom semi-detached dwelling situated on the western side of 

Springfield Drive within a reasonably sized plot.  The site is bounded by a mixture of two storey 
and three storey residential buildings. 

 
1.3 The application is a resubmission of a similar scheme for 3x1 bed units and 1x2 bed unit that 

was withdrawn in December on the grounds it had insufficient parking.  This is a revised 
proposal therefore, for 4x1 bed units. 

 
1.4 A copy of the plans showing the location of the proposal, its design and layout together with the 

design statement are attached at Appendix 1.   
 
1.5 The application comes to Committee because several letters of objection have been received. 
 
2.0 Planning History 
 
2.1 There is no relevant planning history in respect of this property other than the previously 

withdrawn scheme mentioned above. 
 
3.0 Planning Policies 
 
 Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 
 
3.1 Policy GS5 (making efficient use of land and buildings) seeks to promote the efficient re-use of 

previously developed / unused land and buildings within settlements (provided there is no 
conflict with other policies in the Local Plan). 

 
3.2 Policy H10 (development in the five main settlements) enables new housing development within 

the built-up areas of Abingdon, provided it makes efficient use of land, the layout, mass and 
design of the dwellings would not harm the character of the area and it does not involve the loss 
of facilities important to the local community (i.e. informal public open space). 

 
3.3 Policy H14 (the sub-division of dwellings) confirms that the conversion or sub-division of 

properties into additional dwellings will be permitted provided the proposed units would be self 
contained, would have adequate amenity / living space and car parking provision, would not 
harm the character or appearance of the area and would cause demonstrable harm to 
neighbouring properties. 

 
3.4 Policy H15 (housing densities) seeks net residential densities of at least 40 dwellings per 

hectare in the five main settlements, provided there would be no harm to the character of the 
surrounding area or the amenities of adjoining properties. 

 
3.5 Policies DC1, DC5, DC6, and DC9 (quality of new development) are relevant and seek to 

ensure that all new development is of a high standard of design / landscaping, does not cause 
harm to the amenity of neighbours, and is acceptable in terms of highway safety. 

 

Agenda Item 15

Page 60



Report 153/06 

3.6 PPS3, “Housing”, is also relevant and reiterates the key objective of developing previously 
developed sites within urban areas, where suitable, ahead of green field sites and making the 
most effective and efficient use of land. 

 
4.0 Consultations 
 
4.1 Abingdon Town Council has no objections. 
 
4.2 County Engineer – no objections, subject to 1 parking space per flat, and conditions on parking 

and access. 
 
4.3 6 letters of objection have been received, which are summarised as follows: 
 

• The plans still only provide parking for four cars.  It is conceivable that with 2 people living in 
each flat up to 8 cars will be owned.  This puts four cars on the road which is already 
overcrowded with on street parking. 

• The plans show a tree that will overhang the boundary with no 13 Springfield Drive.  It would 
best if it is removed. 

• It is a shame a good family house is being made into flats. 

• None of the objections previously raised appear to have been taken into account by the 
applicant. 

• This will lead to an increase in traffic and will prevent children playing in the street. 

• The flats will generate unacceptable levels of noise. 

• Flats devalue neighbouring dwellings. (This is not a material planning consideration). 

• The parking area for the flats and general use of the block will lead to unacceptable noise 
and disturbance to adjoining neighbours. 

• Construction noise will be unbearable and inconvenient. 
 
5.0 Officer Comments 
 
5.1 The main issues in this case are considered to be 1) the principle of the development in this 

location, 2) the impact of the proposal on the character and appearance of the area, 3) the 
impact of the proposal on neighbouring properties, 4) the safety of the access and parking 
arrangements and 5) drainage issues. 

 
5.2 On the first issue, Abingdon is identified in the Local Plan as an area that can accommodate 

new housing development providing the layout, mass and design of the proposal would not 
harm the character of the area.  PPS 3 ‘Housing’ also makes it a priority to use previously 
developed land for new housing.  Furthermore, it encourages the use of innovative approaches 
to achieve higher densities within existing settlements. In this respect, Paragraph 10 of PPS3 
specifically refers to the planning system delivering ‘a mix of housing, to support a wide variety 
of households at a sufficient quantity to take account of need and demand and to seek to 
improve choice’.  The principle of a development mix of flats and semi-detached dwellings is 
therefore considered acceptable and an appropriate form of development in this location. 

 
5.3 Regarding the second issue, the development in the form proposed is not considered to be out 

of keeping with the locality.  Springfield Drive consists of a mixture of semi-detached dwellings 
intermixed with blocks of flat accommodation.  The area is predominantly suburban in 
appearance with dwellings that are set back from the road frontage.  The proposed residential 
units are not considered to be an inappropriate form of development in the area and would 
provide small units to meet the needs of an increasing number of one and two person 
households. 

 
5.4 Turning to the third issue, the impact upon neighbouring properties, it is considered that no harm 

would be caused to no. 13 Springfield Drive, which adjoins the site.  The extension is not on the 
boundary with this adjoining semi-detached dwelling, and any impact relating to loss of light or 
loss of privacy is not considered sufficiently harmful to warrant refusal.  The extension accords 
with the Council’s adopted House Extension Design Guide in this respect.  Furthermore, impacts 

Page 61



Report 153/06 

of noise on this property are not considered to be any more harmful than that which exists at 
present between the two semi-detached properties. Notwithstanding this, suitable mitigation 
measures and sound proofing can be provided as a requirement of building regulations 
approval, if necessary, during construction of the proposal. 

 
5.5 The proposed flats will also not cause significant harm to the amenities currently enjoyed by 

those properties in Southmoor Way in terms of overlooking rear gardens, as a similar 
relationship to that which currently exists with no. 15 will be maintained.  Similarly, properties 
across the road from the site are considered to be far enough away so as not to be adversely 
affected.  In the light of these factors, Officers consider any additional impact upon neighbouring 
properties to be acceptable. 

 
5.6 On the final issue, parking and access, the proposed arrangements are considered acceptable.  

The parking provision shown provides 1 space for each flat.  This is considered to be sufficient 
so as not to lead to an increase in on street parking.  Adequate visibility can also be achieved at 
the new access to ensure pedestrian and highway safety.  The County Engineer has raised no 
objections to this proposal. 

 
6.0 Recommendation 

 

6.1 That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 

1.  TL1 Time Limit – Full Application 
 

2.  RE1  Matching materials 
 

3.  RE7  Boundary treatment 
 

4.  HY3 Access in accordance with specified plan 
 
 5. HY25 Car parking layout (Building) 
 

Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Report 153/06 

NHI/19842 - Mr & Mrs A Tolley 
Erection of a side and rear extension 
6 Montagu Road, Botley, Oxford, OX2 9AH 
  
1.0 The Proposal 
 
1.1 This application seeks planning permission for the erection of a single storey extension to the 

side and rear of the semi-detached property. The proposed extension on the north east elevation 
extends along the side of the property and 4.2m into the rear garden. Its overall length is 10.7m. 
This would provide a garage 5.5m in depth with an eaves height of 2.3m and ridge height of 
3.3m.  

 
1.2 To the rear of the proposed garage the side extension would have an eaves height of 2.7m and 

ridge height of 3.3m. Both roofs slope away from the boundary and are hipped.  
  
1.3 Nos.4 and 6 Montagu Road are on differing ground levels, no.4 being lower. The retaining wall 

which is on the boundary between the two properties is approximately 1.5m high and the 
proposed garage would be built on this boundary, with the rear part of the side extension slightly 
set off the boundary. Because of the differing ground levels the proposed garage would be the 
higher element of the side extension. 

 
1.4 The proposed extension on the north west elevation extends 4.2m into the rear garden across 

the width of the property (5m) giving a total width of 7m with the inclusion of the side extension. 
The eaves height is 2.7m and the ridge height is 4m.  The application drawing and site plan is at 
Appendix 1. 

 
1.5 The application comes to Committee due to an objection received from North Hinksey Parish 

Council. 
 
2.0 Planning History 
 
2.1 There is no planning history for the property. 
 
3.0 Planning Policies 
 
3.1 Policy H24 of the adopted Local Plan  allows for extensions to existing dwellings provided various 

criteria are satisfactory, including; i) the effect of the development on the character and 
appearance of the dwelling and on the area as a whole; ii) the materials blending with the existing 
dwelling; iii) there being no harmful effect on neighbouring properties in terms of overlooking or 
overshadowing. 

 
3.2 Policies DC1 and DC9 of the Local Plan refer to the design of new development and the impact 

on neighbouring properties. 
 
4.0 Consultations 
 

4.1 North Hinksey Parish Council objects to the application, stating that ‘the height of the planned 
garage is unacceptable to the neighbour as a result of difference in the lie of the land between 
both properties’ and that ‘the proposed development as it stands will reduce the light to 4 
Montagu Road. 

 
4.2 One neighbour objection has been received which relates to the following: The bulk of the 

proposed extension in particular the garage would be too great; the difference in ground levels 
between the two properties would result in the proposed extension dominating no 4; the 
proposal would take away natural light from the kitchen/dining area of no 4, reducing the view 
and creating a tunnel effect.  

 
4.3 The County Engineer raises no objection subject to conditions. 

Agenda Item 16

Page 72



Report 153/06 

5.0 Officer Comments 
 
5.1 The main issues in determining this application are the impact on the street scene and the 

potential impact on neighbouring properties. 
 
5.2 Given the position and size of the proposed extension, Officers consider the proposal would not 

have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the existing dwelling or on the 
area as a whole.  

 
5.3 Officers also consider that there is minimal impact on no.8 as this property has a similar rear 

extension. The key determining issue is considered to be the impact of the proposal on no.4 in 
respect of overshadowing and over dominance.  

 
5.4 The distance is 2.6m between the boundary and the side elevation of no.4, the proposed garage 

is set forward of the secondary window that serves the kitchen/dining area of no.4 and the lower 
roof slope of the proposal would be directly opposite this window. Officers consider that the 
proposal will not cause significant light loss to this room.  

 
5.5 On balance the bulk of the proposal would not cause significant harm to no.4 and Members 

need to be aware that the applicant could build virtually all of the proposed garage and 
utility/cloakroom as permitted development. However, notwithstanding this, the proposal is 
considered acceptable by Officers. 

 
6.0 Recommendation 

 

6.1 That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:- 
 
1. TL1 Time Limit – Full Application 

 
 2. RE1 Matching Materials 
 

2. Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development Order 1995) (or any order revoking and re-enacting that order) no 
windows shall be inserted on the north east elevation of the development hereby 
permitted without the prior grant of planning permission. 

Page 73



Page 74



Report 153/06 

HIN/19850 & HIN/19850/1 – Whitehorse Construction 
Erection of single and two storey rear extension and carport. 
Little Thatch, Church Road, Hinton Waldrist, SN7 8SE 
 
1.0 The Proposal 
 
1.1 These two applications seek planning permission and listed building consent for the erection 

of single storey and two storey rear extensions and a detached carport. Little Thatch is a 
Grade ll listed building of simple design and located within an overgrown site measuring 0.22 
hectares.  The building has been unoccupied for over 12 months.         

 
1.2 Following negotiations, a number of changes have been made to the details of the proposal on 

the request of the Council’s Conservation Officer.  These include the repositioning of the 
carport and an increase of the roof pitch to 40 degrees, the replacement of the proposed gable 
end barge boards of the proposed two storey extension with two courses of brickwork, and an 
amendment to the internal layout of the existing building to retain the existing doors at the top 
of the stairs. 

  
1.3 A location plan, together with amended floor plans and elevations are at Appendix 1. 
 
1.4 These two applications come to Committee as the Parish Council has objected.   
 
2.0 Planning History 

 
2.1 The site has no relevant planning history.  
 
3.0 Planning Policies 
  
3.1 Policies HE5, DC1, and DC9 of the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan relate to 

alterations to listed buildings, and seek to ensure that all new development is of high standard 
of design and does not cause harm to the amenity of neighbours. 

 
4.0 Consultations 
 
4.1 Hinton Waldist Parish Council objects to the applications for the following reasons: “1) New 

extension is out of all proportion to the original listed building. 2) New extension is out of 
keeping with the “listed” nature of the existing building, and 3) Object to clay tiles; either all 
new roofing in natural slate, or in thatch, in keeping with existing building.” 

  
4.2 Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society has objected raising the following concerns: 

proposed increase in the size of the existing floor area; the height of the proposed roof line in 
relationship to the existing cottage would form an unacceptable and overbearing extension. 

 
4.3 The County Engineer has no objections subject to conditions. 
 
4.4 The Conservation Officer has no objections subject to conditions. 
 
4.5 No letters of objection have been received from neighbours. 
 
5.0 Officer Comments 
 
5.1 The main issues in determining these applications are considered to be whether the design of 

the proposed extensions and alterations and the proposed car port would affect the historic 
fabric and setting of the listed building and whether the proposals would have a detrimental 
impact on the character and appearance of the area and impact on neighbours.  

 
5.2 Little Thatch is a very small stone building built with a hipped thatched roof.  The building 

simple by design has a ground floor area of 48.5 square metres and a first floor which 

Agenda Item 17

Page 75



Report 153/06 

measures 25.4 square metres.  Consequently in order to make the building viable there is a 
need for a substantial extension to be built. 

 
5.3 The proposed two storey rear extension will be linked via a proposed single storey extension 

which will replace an existing single storey lean-to structure. It will be located adjacent to and 
to the rear of the existing listed building, to provide additional living accommodation. It will 
project a maximum of 13 metres in a westerly direction. It will be a maximum of 10.8 metres 
wide. 

 
5.4 The eaves height of the pitched roof for the two storey rear extension will be a maximum of 4.1 

metres with a ridge height of 7.2 metres, approximately a metre below the main ridge height of 
the existing listed building.  

 
5.5 The proposed extensions are to be constructed with natural stone to walls with oak lintels and 

brick quoins, painted timber windows and joinery, leaded cheek dormer windows, conservation 
roof lights, plain clay roof tiles and slates. The proposed carport is to be constructed with 
weather boarding on a timber frame with plain clay roof tiles. Officers consider that the 
proposed extensions and alterations and the proposed car port are sympathetic in design and 
in keeping with the fabric and setting of the listed building.  

 
5.6 Officers also consider that due to the orientation and distance away the proposal would not 

have a harmful impact on the neighbouring properties in terms of overlooking or 
overshadowing.  

 
5.7 The Council’s Conservation Officer has no objection to the proposed development. The 

proposed two storey rear extension, although substantial in scale, is separated from the main 
building by a subsidiary link thereby reducing its impact on the principal building. This obviates 
the need for the listed building itself to undergo substantial internal alterations. On balance, 
therefore, Officers consider the proposal to be acceptable. 

 
6.0 Recommendations  

 
HIN/19850  
 
6.1 That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. TL1   Time Limit – Full Application 
  

2. MC2  Submission of Materials (Samples)    
 

3. MC20 Amended Plans  
 

4. HY26  Car Parking Provision 
 

5. HY29 No Surface Water 
 
HIN/19850/1 
 
6.2 That listed building consent be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. TL4  Time Limit 
  

2. MC2   Submission of Materials (Samples)    
 

3. MC20 Amended Plans  

Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Report 153/06 

ABG/19871 – Mr & Mrs Fernback 
Erection of a rear conservatory and new window to rear. 
9 River View Terrace, Coopers Lane, Abingdon, OX14 5GL 
 
1.0 The Proposal 
 
1.1 This application seeks planning permission for a conservatory on the rear (south) elevation of 

the property which backs onto the River Ock.  Amended plans will be provided for Committee 
which will show the depth of the proposed conservatory amended from 3.5m to 3m and the roof 
amended from a gable end to lean-to.  The proposal is 4.7m wide, with the eaves and ridge 
height to be confirmed on receipt of the amended plans.  The application drawings and site plan 
are at Appendix 1. 

 
1.2 The application comes to Committee due to an objection received from Abingdon Town Council. 
 
2.0 Planning History 
 
2.1 There is no planning history for the property. 
 
3.0 Planning Policies 
 
3.1 Policy H24 of the adopted Local Plan to 2011 allow for extensions to existing dwellings provided 

various criteria are satisfactory, including; i) the effect of the development on the character and 
appearance of the dwelling and on the area as a whole; ii) the materials blending with the existing 
dwelling; iii) there being no harmful effect on neighbouring properties in terms of overlooking or 
overshadowing. 

 
3.2 Policies DC1 and DC9 of the adopted Local Plan refer to the design of new development and the 

impact on neighbouring properties. 
 
4.0 Consultations 
 
4.1 Abingdon Town Council objects to the application, stating that ‘the proposal is contrary to policy 

H24 (ii) and (iii) of the adopted Local Plan and object to the conservatory being constructed in 
white PVC.’ 

 
4.2 The County Engineer raises no objections. 
 
5.0 Officer Comments 
 
5.1 The main issues in determining this application are the visual impact of the conservatory and the 

potential impact on neighbouring properties. 
 
5.2 Given the position and size of the proposed conservatory, Officers consider the proposal would 

not have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the existing dwelling or on the 
area as a whole.  It is likely that the proposed conservatory would not be visible from the River 
Ock footpath during the Summer because of vegetation and although it may be visible in Winter, 
this will be a relatively distant view and it is not considered the conservatory would be visually 
harmful. 

 
5.3 Officers consider that the impact of the proposal on the adjacent secondary kitchen window of 

no. 10 River Terrace in respect of overshadowing and over dominance would be minimal.  The 
proposed single storey extension complies with advice in the House Extensions Design Guide. 

Agenda Item 18

Page 81



Report 153/06 

 
6.0 Recommendation 

 

6.1  That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 
 1. TL1 Time Limit – Full Application 
 
 2. RE1 Matching Materials 
 
 3. MC20 Amended Plans 

Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86


